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Subject: FW: BLD19-8144; 059-210-053
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Importance: High

Please look at the ESD question on Thurs. Thanks.
 
From: Robert Tillotson <Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov> 
Sent: Monday, November 9, 2020 1:39 PM
To: Reg Cullen <Reg.Cullen@sonoma-county.org>; Debby Turner <Debby.Turner@sonoma-county.org>
Cc: Kathy Badger <Kathy.Badger@scwa.ca.gov>; James Hiller <James.Hiller@scwa.ca.gov>
Subject: FW: BLD19-8144; 059-210-053
 

EXTERNAL

This is the last email I have on this topic.
 
-Robert
 

From: Keith Hanna <Keith.Hanna@sonoma-county.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 5:05 PM
To: Robert Tillotson <Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov>; Kathy Badger <Kathy.Badger@scwa.ca.gov>
Cc: Debby Turner <Debby.Turner@sonoma-county.org>; Leann Clark <Leann.Clark@sonoma-county.org>; David Royall <David.Royall@scwa.ca.gov>; James Hiller <James.Hiller@scwa.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: BLD19-8144; 059-210-053
 
Hi Robert,
Sounds good.
 
Hi Kathy,
Based on the attached and below, it sounds like process wastewater will be minimal per the owner, and verified if monitored. And, TJ told me over the phone that he believe there would be no net increase in wastewater flows from the
current warehouse/production operation.
 
The parcels has about 7 ESD (per ML).
 
I suggest that ESD fees are assessed for the added office space. If there is a monitored flow then additional ESD can be assessed. Let me know if you concure.
 
If okay, send them an invoice for fees (based on ACR, per attached email).
 
Thanks,
Keith

From: Robert Tillotson <Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 3:14 PM
To: Keith Hanna <Keith.Hanna@sonoma-county.org>; Kathy Badger <Kathy.Badger@scwa.ca.gov>
Cc: Debby Turner <Debby.Turner@sonoma-county.org>; Leann Clark <Leann.Clark@sonoma-county.org>; David Royall <David.Royall@scwa.ca.gov>; James Hiller <James.Hiller@scwa.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: BLD19-8144; 059-210-053
 

EXTERNAL

Hi Keith,
 
In a follow up email (attached) they backed off of that 4,750 gpd figure considerable.  If it’s coming down to ESD assessment, we may want to conduct a facility  inspection to verify discharge levels considering the contrast in figures
provided.  I’ll have to discuss with David Royall and see if that is feasible in the current work environment. 
 
Robert Tillotson
Environmental Compliance Inspector
(707) 547-1078

 
 
 

From: Keith Hanna <Keith.Hanna@sonoma-county.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 12:21 PM
To: Robert Tillotson <Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov>; Kathy Badger <Kathy.Badger@scwa.ca.gov>
Cc: Debby Turner <Debby.Turner@sonoma-county.org>; Leann Clark <Leann.Clark@sonoma-county.org>
Subject: RE: BLD19-8144; 059-210-053
 
Thanks Robert.
 
I briefly spoke with TJ and he let me know that the building permit adds a second story for the proposed office space, and the new manufacturing & cleanroom is similar sewer output to the existing manufacturing.
 
Can you provide me more information about the existing, and previous output of the manufacturing & cleanroom space?  I noticed that the WWDS has 4750 GPD. The office will generate 320 GPD, per Exhibit A [ (6000 SF office) (0.19
ESD/1000 SF office) (280 GPD/ESD) = 319.2 GPD) ].  So, it looks like there is about 4,430 GPD for manufacturing & cleanroom.  Does this sounds reasonable?  Is there a way to determine TSS and BOD? If the manufacturing process has not
changed much from existing, then it is kind of a mute point…
 
Thanks,
Keith
 

From: Robert Tillotson <Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 9:17 AM
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
 
Attached is the completed WWDS that Debby forwarded on 4/17.
 
We’ve been in discussions with the applicant to get more information on the process wastewater and evaluate the need of Industrial User permit.  We can handle this separately, no need to hold up sewer permit issuance for IW concerns.
 
Thanks and let me know if you need anything else.
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BLD19-8144 - TENANT IMPROVEMENT OF (E) MANUFACTURING AREA - 3521 TO BE CONVERT...

Condition Detail

Condition History

Submit ~ Reset  Cancel

Group *
BUILDING V]

Type
Building Final Requirements[ ]

Status
Applied(Applied) V]

Comments (& Standard Comment

Help

Condiion Name *

Inheritable
No

Appied Date
04202020 |84

Severity Effective Date
Required[v] 047202020 @

Expiration Date

The Sewer Review sub-task within the Approvals task has not been approved for final. All sub-tasks
must have Approved for Final marked Yes prior to answering the final inspection - Will need to be
review sewer fees prior to temp occffinal, also need to pay connection/sewer fees.

Applied by Dept * Current Department

ENGINEERING v

Action by Dept_ Current Department

ENGINEERING v

Applied by User * Current User

Debby Tumer

Action by User
Debby Tumer

v

Current User
v

Status Date
04202020 | 84




BLD19-8144 - TENANT IMPROVEMENT OF (E) MANUFACTURING AREA - 3521 TO BE CONVERT...

a A notice was added to this record on 2016.0921.
Summary ® Condition: Severity: Notice
Total conditions: 2. (Notice: 2)
Record Description
View notice
(a) Record Information
Menu v Reports v | Help
(b) GIS Info
(c) Code Enforcement Description of Work:  TENANT IMPROVEMENT OF (E) MANUFACTURING AREA - 3521 TO BE CONVERTED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CLEAN ROOM AND NEW 3521 SQ FT OFFICE ABOVE
Address: 3250 Brickway Bivd Santa RosaCA 95403
OWNER BUILDER

INFORMATION Application Status: Pian Check Approved






















From: Matt Johnson
To: Robert Tillotson
Cc: TJ Shadid; David Royall; James Hiller
Subject: RE: Wastewater Discharge Survey - SMC Ltd.
Date: Monday, May 11, 2020 10:54:01 AM
Attachments: image005.png


SD2530LT.pdf
SD6410.pdf
SD3315.pdf
SD3110.pdf
SD3314.pdf


Hi Robert,
I have huddled with my water treatment guy and got the SDS’s of the products used. I’ve attached
those.
And I spoke with my production team about how much goes down the drain. The amount of process
water that enters the sanitary sewer is pretty minimal. It comes from purging a tool when we do a
die change. I can safely say that it is about 5 gallons per day, 5 days a week.
The tower system is a closed loop system where the PH is monitored by a small controller and purge
valve. Process water is never introduced to the system so the PH does not wander much. Fresh city
water is added to offset evaporation.
 
 
 
Regards,
Matt Johnson
Maintenance
 


3250 Brickway Blvd.
Santa Rosa, CA  95403
707.303.3046
www.smcltd.com
 


From: Robert Tillotson <Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 3:13 PM
To: Matt Johnson <Matt.Johnson@smcltd.com>
Cc: TJ Shadid <TJ.Shadid@smcltd.com>; David Royall <David.Royall@scwa.ca.gov>; James Hiller
<James.Hiller@scwa.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: Wastewater Discharge Survey - SMC Ltd.
 
Hi Matt,
 
Thanks for getting back to me, I’ll look forward to the more information that you can provide. 
 
I don’t see anything that would suggest that the survey was filled out incorrectly. The Sanitation
Zone’s Industrial Waste section was recently audited by representatives from the State Regional
Water Quality Control Board and the US EPA.  In that audit, SMC Ltd was pointed out as an Industry
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SAFETY DATA SHEET



SECTION 1 - PRODUCT IDENTIFICATION



SECTION 2 - HAZARDS IDENTIFICATION



FORMULA 2530-LT
COOLING WATER TREATMENT



NOT REGULATED
NOT REGULATED



SD2530LT
1/24/2018



PRODUCT NAME:
PRODUCT USE:



UN NUMBER:
PROPER SHIPPING NAME:
MANUFACTURER'S NAME:
ADDRESS:
EMERGENCY PHONE:



BUSINESS PHONE:
SDS NUMBER:
DATE OF REVISION:



Garratt-Callahan Company
50 Ingold Road, Burlingame, CA 94010-2206
North America: CHEMTREC: 1-800-424-9300                    
Outside North America: +1-703-527-3887
Product Information: 650-697-5811



RESTRICTIONS ON USE: Refer to label, available technical information, and other 
appropriate sections of this SDS.



SIGNAL WORD: WARNING



HAZARD STATEMENT:
H302: Harmful if swallowed.  4 
H315: Causes skin irritation.  2
H320: Causes eye irritation.  2B 
H333: May be harmful if inhaled.  5



PRECAUTIONARY STATEMENTS: (PREVENTION)
P101: If medical advice is needed, have product container or label at hand.
P102: Keep out of reach of children.
P103: Read label before use.
P264: Wash all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling.
P270: Do not eat, drink or smoke when using this product.
P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection.



Hazard Scale
0=Minimal 
1=Slight 
2=Moderate  
3=Serious  
4=Severe  
*=Chronic hazard



HAZARDOUS MATERIAL IDENTIFICATION SYSTEM



1 0 INSTABILITY



FLAMMABILITY



0
HEALTH



SPECIAL HAZARD



PHYSICAL HAZARD (YELLOW) 0



FLAMMABILITY HAZARD (RED) 0



1HEALTH HAZARD (BLUE)



NFPA RATING



PERSONAL PROTECTION



FORMULA 2530LT



WATER TREATMENT EXPERTISE SINCE 1904 
www.garrattcallahan.com Page 1 of 6











Hazardous Ingredients



PHOSPHONOBUTANE TRICARBOXYLIC 
ACID



37971-36-1



ACRYLIC TERPOLYMER



BENZOTRIAZOLE



POLYMALEIC ACID



PROPRIETARY



95-14-7



26099-09-2



CAS# WT %EC# ICSC#



5 - 10253-733-5 NE



< 5



5 - 10



3



N/A



202-394-1



N/A



N/A



1091



N/A



SECTION 3 -  COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS



Exposed individuals must be taken for medical attention if any adverse effect occurs. Take a copy of this SDS to the health 
professional with the individual.



WARNING:  May be harmful if swallowed. Causes skin irritation. Causes serious eye irritation. May be harmful if inhaled. Also
refer to Section 11 for symptoms, effects, and likely routes of exposure for this product. 



TARGET ORGANS: 
ACUTE: Irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.
CHRONIC: Irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.



SKIN EXPOSURE:  P302+P352: IF ON SKIN: Wash with soap and water. If this product contaminates the skin, begin 
decontamination with running water and soap. Minimum flushing time is for 15 minutes. P362+P364: Take off contaminated 
clothing and wash before reuse. P332+P313: If skin irritation occurs: Get medical advice/attention.



EYE EXPOSURE:  P305+P351+P338: IF IN EYES: Rinse continuously with water for several minutes. Remove contact lenses if 
present and easy to do – continue rinsing. Use sufficient force to open the eyelids. Have the exposed individual "roll" their eyes. 
Minimum flushing time is for 15 minutes. P337+P313: If eye irritation persists get medical advice/attention.



INHALATION:  P304+P312: IF INHALED: Call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician if you feel unwell. If vapors, mists, or 
sprays generated by this product are inhaled, remove exposed individual to fresh air. Remove or cover gross contamination to 
avoid exposure to rescuers. 



INGESTION:  P301+P312: IF SWALLOWED: Call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician if you feel unwell. Never induce 
vomiting or give diluents (milk or water) by mouth to someone who is unconscious, having convulsions, or unable to swallow.



MEDICAL CONDITIONS AGGRAVATED BY EXPOSURE:  Skin and respiratory disorders, as well as conditions involving the 
“Target Organs” (see above) which may be aggravated by prolonged exposures to this product. Exposed individual must seek 
immediate medical attention if any adverse effect occurs. 



NOTES TO PHYSICIAN:   Treat symptoms as demonstrated by signs and distress in the patient.



SECTION 4 - FIRST AID MEASURES



SUITABLE (AND UNSUITABLE) 
EXTINGUISHING MATERIALS:



Product is non-flammable. Use water spray, dry chemical, CO2 or foam. Use media 
appropriate for surrounding fire.



SPECIFIC HAZARDS ARISING FROM 
THE CHEMICAL:



No special hazards.



SPECIAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 
AND PRECAUTIONS FOR 
FIREFIGHTERS:



Firefighters should wear fully protective clothing (chemical impermeable, fully 
encapsulated suit) and positive pressure self-contained breathing apparatus. Do not 
release run off from fire control methods to sewer or waterways.



SECTION 5 - FIRE FIGHTING MEASURES



FORMULA 2530LT



WATER TREATMENT EXPERTISE SINCE 1904 
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PERSONAL PRECAUTIONS, PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT, ENVIRONMENTAL PRECAUTIONS AND EMERGENCY 
PROCEDURES.
WARNING: Any drum expansion or rounding indicates pressure build-up. Use extreme caution. When opening, release pressure 
slowly through opening.



SPILL AND LEAK RESPONSE: Uncontrolled releases should be responded to by appropriately trained personnel using pre-
planned procedures. Proper protective equip ment should be used,  refer to Section 8 - exposure controls.  



Small Spill:  Mop up, or absorb with an inert dry material and place in an appropriate waste disposal container. 



Large Spill: Restrict access to the area.  Provide adequate protective equipment and ventilation. Stop leak if without risk. 
Remove chemicals which can react with the spilled material.  Absorb with DRY inert non-combustible material. Do not get water 
inside container. Do not touch spilled material. Use water spray curtain to divert vapor drift. Use water spray to reduce vapors. 
Prevent entry into sewers, basements or confined areas, dike if needed. Ensure that the product is not at a concentration level 
above exposure limits. Decontaminate the area thoroughly. Decontaminate all response equipment with soapy water before 
returning to service. Place all spill residue in a suitable container and seal.  P391: Collect spillage.



SECTION 6 - ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES



SECTION 7 - HANDLING AND STORAGE



PRECAUTIONS FOR SAFE HANDLING:  As with all chemicals, avoid getting this product ON YOU or IN YOU. Wash 
thoroughly after handling this product. Do not eat, drink, smoke, or apply cosmetics while handling this product.  Avoid 
breathing vapors or mists generated by this product. Use in a well-ventilated location. Remove contaminated clothing 
immediately. Refer to Section 8 for exposure controls.  



CONDITIONS FOR SAFE STORAGE:  All employees who handle this material should be trained to handle it safely. Open 
containers slowly on a stable surface. Containers of this product must be properly labeled. Storage areas of this product should 
be clearly identified, well-illuminated, clear of obstruction and accessible only to trained and authorized personnel.  Store 
containers in a cool, dry location, away from direct sunlight, at temperatures between 50ºF - 100ºF. Keep container tightly 
closed when not in use. Refer to Section 10 for incompatibilities.



SECTION 8 - EXPOSURE CONTROLS - PERSONAL PROTECTION



EXPOSURE LIMITS/GUIDELINES:



CHEMICAL NAME



PHOSPHONOBUTANE 
TRICARBOXYLIC ACID



37971-36-1



ACRYLIC TERPOLYMER



BENZOTRIAZOLE



POLYMALEIC ACID



PROPRIETARY



95-14-7



26099-09-2



CAS# ACGIH TLV OSHA PEL OTHER



EXPOSURE LIMITS IN AIR



NE NE NONE



NE



NE



NE



NE



NE



NE



NONE



NONE



NONE



TWA 



NE



NE



NE



NE



P264: Wash all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling. P280: Wear protective 
gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection. Use chemically-resistant gloves and 
skin protection, when handling this product. Use body protection appropriate for task (e.g., lab 
coat, overalls).



Safety glasses with side shields or chemical safety goggles. A face shield may also be 
necessary for splash protection. 



P260: Do not breathe dust/fume/gas/mist/vapours/spray. Maintain airborne contaminant 
concentrations below guidelines listed above, if applicable. Air-purifying respirators with 
dust/mist/fume/spray filters are recommended if operations may produce dusts, mists or 
sprays from this product.



STEL TWA 



NE = Not Established       



Do not ingest. Wash hands after handling.
RESPIRATORY PROTECTION:



EYE PROTECTION:



SKIN PROTECTION:



INGESTION:



VENTILATION AND ENGINEERING CONTROLS: Use with adequate ventilation. Eyewash/safety shower station is 
recommended to be available near where this product is 
used/stored.



FORMULA 2530LT
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FLASHPOINT: Non-flammable
AUTOIGNITION TEMPERATURE: Not applicable



Not applicableFLAMMABLE LIMITS (in air by volume, %):



SECTION 9 - PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES



APPEARANCE and COLOR: Clear yellow liquid



BOILING POINT: >212°F (100°C)



VAPOR DENSITY (Air=1): Not established



pH: 1.5 - 2.5 SOLUBILITY IN WATER: Complete



RELATIVE DENSITY@20°C (water=1): 1.06 - 1.08



EVAPORATION RATE (n-BuAc=1): < 1



ODOR : Slight organic
VAPOR PRESSURE, mm Hg @ 20°C: Not established



SECTION 10 - STABILITY AND REACTIVITY



SECTION 11 - TOXICOLOGICAL INFORMATION



MELTING/FREEZING POINT: NA



SECTION 12 - ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION



SECTION 13 - DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS



ALL WORK PRACTICES MUST BE AIMED AT ELIMINATING ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINATION.
ECOTOXICITY: 
PERSISTENCE AND DEGRADABILITY: No data available for this product. 
Fish: No data available for this product.
Algae: No data available for this product.
Daphnia: No data available fo this product.
BIOLOGICAL ACCUMULATION POTENTIAL: No data available for this product.
MOBILITY IN SOIL: No data available for this product.
OTHER ADVERSE EFFECTS (i.e., hazardous to the ozone layer): No data available for this product.



BIOLOGICAL EXPOSURE INDICES: Currently, Biological Exposure Indices (BEIs) have not been determined for the components
                                                             of this product



Stable under normal condition of use and storage.



When heated to decomposition product may emit toxic fumes of oxides of carbon, nitrogen 
and phosphorous.



See incompatible materials.



Reactive metals.
See incompatible materials.



VISCOSITY: Not established



PARTITION COEFFICIENT(n-octanol/water): Not established



DECOMPOSITION TEMPERATURE: Not established



Not established.



VOLATILE ORGANIC COMPOUNDS (%): None



ODOR THRESHOLD: Not established



FLAMMABILITY (SOLID/GAS): Not applicable



REACTIVITY:
STABILITY:



POSSIBILITY OF HAZARDOUS 
REACTIONS:



CONDITIONS TO AVOID:
INCOMPATIBLE MATERIALS:



HAZARDOUS DECOMPOSITION 
PRODUCTS:



DISPOSAL:  Thoroughly drain/empty containers and offer for recycling. Refer to Section 8 for exposure controls - personal 
protection. P501: Dispose of contents/container in accordance with local/regional/national/international regulations. 



        TOXICOLOGICAL EFFECTS: No data available for this product.
LIKELY ROUTES OF EXPOSURE: Skin, eye contact and inhalation.



                  RELATED SYMPTOMS: Skin, eye, respiratory and gastrointestinal irritation. May be harmful if swallowed.
DELAYED/IMMEDIATE/CHRONIC 
       EFFECTS FROM SHORT AND 
            LONG TERM EXPOSURES: Skin, eye, respiratory and gastrointestinal irritation. May be harmful if swallowed.
         NUMERICAL MEASURES OF  
                                        TOXICITY: Not established for this product.



                        CARCINOGENICITY: None of the components of this product are listed by the NTP, IARC,
                                                           or regulated by OSHA AS carcinogens.
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SECTION 14 - TRANSPORTATION INFORMATION



DOT: NOT REGULATED
IMDG/IMO: NOT REGULATED



IATA/ICAO: NOT REGULATED



ENVIRONMENTAL HAZARDS 
(i.e., MARINE POLLUTANT): None known.



TRANSPORT IN BULK (according to 
annex II marpol 73/78 and the IBC code): Not applicable.



SPECIAL PRECAUTIONS FOR USER: None known.



PROPER SHIPPING NAME



United States and International Regulations  



United States Regulations:  U.S. SARA REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  The components of this product are subject to 
the reporting as listed below, requirements of Sections 302, 304, and 313 of Title of the Superfund Amendments and 
Reauthorization Act:



CHEMICAL NAME



SECTION 15 - REGULATORY INFORMATION



PHOSPHONOBUTANE 
TRICARBOXYLIC ACID



ACRYLIC TERPOLYMER



BENZOTRIAZOLE



POLYMALEIC ACID



SARA 302 (40 CFR 355, Appendix A) - NO   
SARA 304 (40 CFR Table 302.4) - NO   
SARA 313 (40 CFR 372.65) - NO



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



U.S. Regulations
U.S. SARA THRESHOLD PLANNING QUANTITY: There are no specific Threshold Planning Quantities for the components of 
this product.  The default Federal SDS submission and inventory requirement filing threshold of 10,000 lbs (4,540 kg) therefore 
applies, per 40 CFR 370.20.
U.S. CERCLA REPORTABLE QUANTITY (RQ): 
U.S. TSCA INVENTORY STATUS:  The components of this product are listed on the TSCA Inventory, or are exempt.
SARA Title 311/312, Hazard Category:  Acute Health:  YES;   Chronic: NO;   Fire: NO;   Reactive: NO;   Sudden Release of 
Pressure: NO



California safe drinking water and toxic enforcement act (proposition 65): None.
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SECTION 16 - OTHER INFORMATION



International Regulations
CANADIAN REGULATIONS:   CANADIAN DSL/NDSL INVENTORY STATUS:  The components of this product are on the DSL 
or NDSL Inventories or are exempt from listing.   CANADIAN WHMIS CLASSIFICATION: None.



1/24/2018DATE OF REVISION:



PREPARED BY:   GARRATT CALLAHAN



10/15/2015Supercedes:



Although reasonable care has been taken in the preparation of this document, we extend no warranties and make no representations as to the 
accuracy or completeness of the information contained herein, and assume no responsibility regarding the suitability of this information for the user's 
intended purpose or for the consequences of its use.  Each individual should make a determination as to the suitability of the information for their 
particular purpose.
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SAFETY DATA SHEET



SECTION 1 - PRODUCT IDENTIFICATION



SECTION 2 - HAZARDS IDENTIFICATION



FORMULA 6410
CLOSED SYSTEM CORROSION INHIBITOR



UN1760
UN1760 CORROSIVE LIQUID, N.O.S. (SODIUM MOLYBDATE 
SOLUTION), 8, PGIII



SD6410
7/13/2017



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



SIGNAL WORD: DANGER



HAZARD STATEMENT:
H303: May be harmful if swallowed.  5
H315: Causes skin irritation.  2
H319: Cause serious eye irritation.  2A
H333: May be harmful if inhaled.  5
H361: Suspected of damaging fertility or unborn child.  2



PRECAUTIONARY STATEMENTS: (PREVENTION)
P101: If medical advice is needed, have product container or label at hand.
P102: Keep out of reach of children.
P103: Read label before use.
P201: Obtain special instructions before use. 
P202: Do not handle until all safety precautions have been read and 
understood. 
P264: Wash all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling.
P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face 
protection.



Hazard Scale
0=Minimal 
1=Slight 
2=Moderate  
3=Serious  
4=Severe  
*=Chronic hazard



HAZARDOUS MATERIAL IDENTIFICATION SYSTEM



2 0 INSTABILITY



FLAMMABILITY



0
HEALTH



SPECIAL HAZARD



PHYSICAL HAZARD (YELLOW) 0



FLAMMABILITY HAZARD (RED) 0



2HEALTH HAZARD (BLUE)



NFPA RATING



PERSONAL PROTECTION
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Hazardous Ingredients



SODIUM MOLYBDATE 7631-95-0



POTASSIUM HYDROXIDE



BORIC ACID



BENZOTRIAZOLE



PROPYLONE GLYCOL



1310-58-3



10043-35-3



95-14-7



57-55-6



CAS# WT %EC# ICSC#



8-10231-551-7 1010



6-9



3-6



1-2



1-2



215-181-3



233-139-2



202-394-1



200-338-0



0357



0991



1091



0321



SECTION 3 -  COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS



Exposed individuals must be taken for medical attention if any adverse effect occurs. Take a copy of this SDS to the health 
professional with the individual. 



Warning: May be harmful if swallowed. Causes skin irritation. Cause serious eye irritation. May be harmful if inhaled. Suspected 
of damaging fertility or unborn child. Also refer to Section 11 for symptoms, effects, and likely routes of exposure for this product. 
P308+P313: IF exposed or concerned: Get medical advice/attention. 



TARGET ORGANS: 
ACUTE irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.
CHRONIC irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.



SKIN EXPOSURE:  P32+P352: IF ON SKIN: Wash with plenty of water. IF ON SKIN (or hair): Remove/take off immediately all 
contaminated clothing. Rinse skin with water/shower. Minimum flushing time is for 15 minutes. P362+P364: Take off 
contaminated clothing and wash it before reuse. P332+P313: If skin irritation occurs: Get medical advice/attention. 



EYE EXPOSURE:  P305+P351+P338: IF IN EYES: Rinse continuously with water for several minutes. Remove contact lenses if 
present and easy to do – continue rinsing.   Use sufficient force to open the eyelids.  Have the exposed individual "roll" their 
eyes.  Minimum flushing time is for 15 minutes. P337+P313: If eye irritation persists: Get medical advice/attention. 



INHALATION:   P304+P312: IF INHALED: Called a POISON CENTER/doctor/if you feel unwell. 



INGESTION:  IF SWALLOWED: Rinse mouth. Never induce vomiting or give diluents (milk or water) by mouth to someone who 
is unconscious, having convulsions, or unable to swallow. P312: Call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician if you feel unwell. 



MEDICAL CONDITIONS AGGRAVATED BY EXPOSURE:  Skin and respiratory disorders, as well as conditions involving the 
“Target Organs” may be aggravated by prolonged exposures to this product. Exposed individual must seek immediate medical 
attention if any adverse effect occurs. 



NOTES TO PHYSICIAN:  Treat symptoms as demonstrated by signs and distress in the patient. 



SECTION 4 - FIRST AID MEASURES



SUITABLE (AND UNSUITABLE) 
EXTINGUISHING MATERIALS:



Use extinguishing measures that are appropriate to local circumstances and the 
surrounding environment.



SPECIFIC HAZARDS ARISING FROM 
THE CHEMICAL:



None known.



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
WARNING:  Any container expansion or rounding indicates pressure build-up.  Use extreme caution. When opening, release 
pressure slowly through opening.



SPILL AND LEAK RESPONSE: Uncontrolled releases should be responded to by appropriately trained personnel using pre-
planned procedures. Proper protective equipment should be used,  refer to Section 8 - exposure controls. 



Small Spill:  Mop up, or absorb with an inert dry material and place in an appropriate waste disposal container.  P391: Collect 
spillage.



Large Spill:  Restrict access to the area.  Provide adequate protective equipment and ventilation.  Stop leak if without risk.  
Remove chemicals which can react with the spilled material.  Add dry inert material to contain and absorb spilled material.  
Prevent entry into surface waters, sewers, basements or confined areas, dike if needed.  Ensure that exposure to product is not 
at a concentration exceeding regulatory limits.  Decontaminate the area thoroughly.  Decontaminate all response equipment with 
soapy water before returning to service.  Place all spill residue in a suitable container and seal.  P391: Collect spillage.



SECTION 6 - ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES



SECTION 7 - HANDLING AND STORAGE



PRECAUTIONS FOR SAFE HANDLING: Keep out of reach of children. All employees who handle this material should be 
trained to handle it safely. Open containers slowly on a stable surface.  As with all chemicals, avoid getting this product ON 
YOU or IN YOU. Avoid direct or prolonged contact with skin or eyes. Do not ingest. Wash thoroughly after handling this 
product.  Do not eat, drink, smoke, or apply cosmetics while handling this product.  Avoid breathing vapors, dusts or mists 
generated by this product.  Use in a well-ventilated location.  Remove contaminated clothing immediately.  Use only as 
directed. Refer to Section 8 for exposure controls. P201: Obtain special instructions before use. P202: Do not handle until all 
safety precautions have been read and understood. 



CONDITIONS FOR SAFE STORAGE:  Containers of this product must be properly labeled. Storage areas of this product 
should be clearly identified, well-illuminated, clear of obstruction and accessible only to trained and authorized personnel.  
Store containers in a clean, cool, well ventilated,  dry location, away from direct sunlight, away from incompatible materials at 
temperatures between 50ºF (10°C) - 100ºF (37°C).   Keep container tightly closed when not in use. P405: Store locked up. Do 
not ingest. Do not breathe vapor mist. Wash hands after handling. Refer to Section 10 for incompatibilities. Store in a well 
ventilated place. Keep container tightly closed.



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



NE 5.0 mg/m³ as 
soluble Mo



NA



 C 2 mg/m³



NE



NE



NE



NE



NE



NE



NE



NIOSH REL C 2 
mg/m³



NA



NA



NA



TWA 



0.5 mg/m³ 
as soluble 



Mo



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
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FLASHPOINT: Not applicable
AUTOIGNITION TEMPERATURE: Not applicable



Not applicableFLAMMABLE LIMITS (in air by volume, %):



SECTION 9 - PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES



APPEARANCE and COLOR: Clear to cloudy light yellow 
liquid



BOILING POINT: > 212°F (100°C)



VAPOR DENSITY (Air=1): Not established



pH: >12.5 SOLUBILITY IN WATER: Complete



RELATIVE DENSITY@20°C (water=1): 1.17 - 1.18



EVAPORATION RATE (n-BuAc=1): Not established



ODOR : Slight



VAPOR PRESSURE, mm Hg @ 20°C: Not established



SECTION 10 - STABILITY AND REACTIVITY



SECTION 11 - TOXICOLOGICAL INFORMATION



MELTING/FREEZING POINT: Not established



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



P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection. A face shield 
may also be necessary for splash protection. P264: Wash thoroughly after handling. 



                      CARCINOGENICITY:  None of the components of this product are listed by the NTP, IARC, or regulated 
                                                            by OSHA as carcinogens.



SECTION 12 - ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION



ALL WORK PRACTICES MUST BE AIMED AT ELIMINATING ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINATION.
ECOTOXICITY:
Waterflea 48hr LC50 : 5946 ppm
Fathead minnow 96hr LC50 : 2139 ppm
PERSISTENCE AND DEGRADABILITY: No data available for this product. 
BIOLOGICAL ACCUMULATION POTENTIAL: Material is not expected to bioaccumulate.
MOBILITY IN SOIL: No data available for this product.
OTHER ADVERSE EFFECTS (i.e., hazardous to the ozone layer): No data available for this product.



BIOLOGICAL EXPOSURE INDICES: Currently, Biological Exposure Indices (BEIs) have not been determined for the components 
of this product.



Stable under normal condition of use and storage.



Thermal decomposition may result in oxides of carbon and nitrogen.



None known.



Strong acids, reactive metals, and strong oxidizing agents.
None known.



Do not breathe dust/fume/gas/mist/vapours/spray. Use only outdoors or in a well-ventilated 
area. Maintain airborne contaminant concentrations below guidelines listed above, if 
applicable.  Air-purifying respirators with dust/mist/fume/spray filters are recommended if 
operations may produce dusts, mists or sprays from this product with concentrations at or 
above levels posted above.



VISCOSITY: Not established



PARTITION COEFFICIENT(n-octanol/water): Not established



DECOMPOSITION TEMPERATURE: Not established



Product is not reactive under standard ambient temperature and pressure.



Wash all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling. Do not eat, drink or smoke when using 
this product.



VOLATILE ORGANIC COMPOUNDS (%): Not established



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
                                        TOXICITY: No data avabilable for this product.
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SECTION 13 - DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS



SECTION 14 - TRANSPORTATION INFORMATION



PRODUCT REQUIRES CORROSIVE LABEL



DOT: UN1760, CORROSIVE LIQUID, N.O.S., (SODIUM 
MOLYBDATE SOLUTION), 8, PGIII  
Emergency Response Guidebook Guide No.: 154
Passenger Aircraft Qty: 1L
Cargo Aircraft Qty: 30L



IMDG/IMO: UN1760, CORROSIVE LIQUID, N.O.S., (SODIUM 
MOLYBDATE SOLUTION), 8, PGIII



IATA/ICAO: UN1760, CORROSIVE LIQUID, N.O.S., (SODIUM 
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



DISPOSAL:  Rinse empty containers with water and use the rinse water to prepare the working solution.  Refer to section 8 for 
exposure controls - personal protection. P501: Dispose of contents/container in accordance with local/regional/national/international 
regulations. 



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



SODIUM MOLYBDATE



POTASSIUM HYDROXIDE



BORIC ACID



BENZOTRIAZOLE



PROPYLONE GLYCOL



SARA 302 (40 CFR 355, Appendix A) - NO
SARA 304 (40 CFR Table 302.4) - NO
SARA 313 (40 CFR 372.65) - NO



SARA 302 (40 CFR 355, Appendix A) - NO
SARA 304 (40 CFR Table 302.4) - YES
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
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Formula 6410 is registered with the NSF to the NSF International Registration Guidelines for Proprietary Substances and Nonfood 
Compounds for category codes G5, G7; with NSF Reg. No. 148446. 



FORMULA 6410 has been certified by the Orthodox Union as Kosher Pareve under the UK ID number of OUV3-F8D77B5 when 
prepared in either the Addison, Illinois or Burlingame, California facilities.



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
U.S. CERCLA REPORTABLE QUANTITY (RQ):  Potassium Hydroxide (CAS# 1310-58-3) 1,000 Lbs, (454 Kg).
U.S. TSCA INVENTORY STATUS:  The components of this product are listed on the TSCA Inventory.
SARA TITLE 311/312 HAZARD CATEGORY: ACUTE: YES  CHRONIC:  YES    FIRE:  NO   REACTIVITY: NO  PRESSURE: 
NO



California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act (proposition 65):   No component of this product is on the 
Proposition 65 list.



International Regulations
CANADIAN REGULATIONS:
CANADIAN DSL/NDSL INVENTORY STATUS:  The components of this product are on the DSL or NDSL  Inventories or are 
exempt from listing. 
CANADIAN WHMIS CLASSIFICATION:  A component of this product (Potassium Hydroxide, CAS# 1310-58-3) has WHMIS 
classification of D1B (toxic) and E (corrosive).



7/13/2017DATE OF REVISION:



PREPARED BY:   GARRATT CALLAHAN



10/1/2015Supercedes:



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



FORMULA 315
BIOCIDE



UN 3265
UN 3265, CORROSIVE LIQUID, ACIDIC, ORGANIC, N.O.S. (5-
CHLORO-2-METHYL-4-ISOTHIAZOLIN-3-ONE), 8, PG II



SD3315 
12/11/2018



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



GHS HAZARD STATEMENT:
H314: Causes severe skin burns and eye damage.
H317: May cause an allergic skin reaction.  



GHS PREVENTATIVE STATEMENTS:
P101: If medical advice is needed, have product container or label at hand.
P102: Keep out of reach of children.
P103: Read label before use.
P260: Do not breathe dust/fume/gas/mist/vapours/spray.
P264: Wash all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling.
P272: Contaminated work clothing should not be allowed out of the workplace.
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



3 0 INSTABILITY



FLAMMABILITY



0
HEALTH



SPECIAL HAZARD



PHYSICAL HAZARD (YELLOW) 0



FLAMMABILITY HAZARD (RED) 0



3HEALTH HAZARD (BLUE)



NFPA RATING



PERSONAL PROTECTION
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Hazardous Ingredients



MAGNESIUM DINITRATE 10377-60-3



5-CHLORO-2-METHYL-4-ISOTHIAZOLIN-3-
ONE



2-METHYL-4-ISOTHIAZOLIN-3-ONE



MAGNESIUM CHLORIDE



26172-55-4



2682-20-4



7786-30-3



CAS# WT %EC# ICSC#



1-3233-826-7 1041



1-2



<1



<1



247-500-7



220-239-6



232-094-6



NA



NA



0764



SECTION 3 -  COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS



Exposed individuals must be taken for medical attention if any adverse effect occurs. Take copy of label and SDS to health 
professional with contaminated individual.



DANGER:  Causes severe skin burns and eye damage. May cause an allergic skin reaction. Also refer to Section 11 for 
symptoms, effects, and likely routes of exposure for this product.



TARGET ORGANS: 
ACUTE irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.
CHRONIC irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.



SKIN EXPOSURE:  P303+P361+P353: IF ON SKIN (or hair): Take off immediately all contaminated clothing. Rinse skin with 
water[or shower]. P302+P352: IF ON SKIN: Wash with soap and water. Minimum flushing is for 15 minutes. P362+P364: Take 
off contaminated clothing and wash it before reuse. P333+P313: If skin irritation or rash occurs: Get medical advice/attention. 
P310: Immediately call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician.



EYE EXPOSURE: P305+P351+P338: IF IN EYES: Rinse continuously with water for several minutes. Remove contact lenses if 
present and easy to do – continue rinsing.  Use sufficient force to open eyelids. Have contaminated individual "roll" eyes. 
Minimum flushing is for 15 minutes. P310: Immediately call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician.



INHALATION:   P304+P340: IF INHALED: Remove person to fresh air and keep comfortable for breathing. P310: Immediately 
call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician.



INGESTION:  P301+P330+P331: IF SWALLOWED: Rinse mouth. Do NOT induce vomiting. Rinse mouth. Never induce 
vomiting or give diluents (milk or water) by mouth to someone who is unconscious, having convulsions, or unable to swallow. 
P310: Immediately call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician.



MEDICAL CONDITIONS AGGRAVATED BY EXPOSURE:  Skin and respiratory disorders, as well as conditions involving the 
“Target Organs” (see Section 3, Hazard Identification) may be aggravated by prolonged overexposures to this product.



NOTES TO PHYSICIAN: Treat symptoms as demonstrated by signs and distress in the patient.



SECTION 4 - FIRST AID MEASURES



SUITABLE (AND UNSUITABLE) 
EXTINGUISHING MATERIALS:



Use extinguishing media appropriate for the surrounding fire.



SPECIFIC HAZARDS ARISING FROM 
THE CHEMICAL:



Combustion generates toxic fumes of the following: Hydrogen chloride, Nitrogen 
oxides (Nox), Sulfur oxides.



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
Incipient fire responders should wear eye protection. Structural firefighters must 
wear Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus and full protective equipment. Isolate 
materials not yet involved in the fire and protect personnel. Move containers from 
fire area if this can be done without risk; otherwise, cool with carefully applied water 
spray. If possible, prevent runoff water from entering storm drains, bodies of water, 
or other environmentally sensitive areas.



SECTION 5 - FIRE FIGHTING MEASURES
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PERSONAL PRECAUTIONS, PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT, ENVIRONMENTAL PRECAUTIONS AND EMERGENCY 
PROCEDURES.
WARNING:  Any container expansion or rounding indicates pressure build-up. Use extreme caution. When opening, release 
pressure slowly through opening.



SPILL AND LEAK RESPONSE:  Uncontrolled releases should be responded to by appropriately trained personnel using pre-
planned procedures. Proper protective equipment should be used,  refer to Section 8 - exposure controls. 



Small Spill:  Mop up, or absorb with an inert dry material and place in an appropriate waste disposal container. P391: Collect 
spillage.



Large Spill: Restrict access to the area. Provide adequate protective equipment and ventilation. Stop leak if without risk. 
Remove chemicals which can react with the spilled material. Add dry inert material to contain and absorb spilled material. Prevent 
entry into surface waters, sewers, basements or confined areas, dike if needed. Ensure that exposure to product is not at a 
concentration exceeding regulatory limits.  Decontaminate the area thoroughly. Decontaminate all response equipment with 
soapy water before returning to service. Place all spill residue in a suitable container and seal. P391: Collect spillage.



SECTION 6 - ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES



SECTION 7 - HANDLING AND STORAGE



PRECAUTIONS FOR SAFE HANDLING: Keep out of reach of children. All employees who handle this material should be 
trained to handle it safely. Open containers slowly on a stable surface. As with all chemicals, avoid getting this product ON
YOU or IN YOU. Avoid direct or prolonged contact with skin or eyes. Do not ingest. Wash thoroughly after handling this 
product. Do not eat, drink, smoke, or apply cosmetics while handling this product.  Avoid breathing vapors, dusts or mists 
generated by this product. Use in a well-ventilated location.  Remove contaminated clothing immediately. Use only as directed. 
Refer to Section 8 for exposure controls. 



CONDITIONS FOR SAFE STORAGE:  Containers of this product must be properly labeled. Storage areas of this product 
should be clearly identified, well-illuminated, clear of obstruction and accessible only to trained and authorized personnel. Store 
containers in a clean, cool, well ventilated, dry location, away from direct sunlight, away from incompatible materials at 
temperatures between 34ºF (1°C) - 131ºF (55°C). Keep container tightly closed when not in use. P405: Store locked up. Do not 
ingest. Do not breathe vapor mist. Wash hands after handling. Refer to Section 10 for incompatibilities. Do not store this 
material in containers made of the following: steel. CONTAINERS MAY BE HAZARDOUS WHEN EMPTY. Since emptied 
containers retain product residue, follow all MSDS and label warnings even after container is emptied. Expiration date based 
only on retention of >95% actives during storage at 20°C (68°F - 77°F).



SECTION 8 - EXPOSURE CONTROLS - PERSONAL PROTECTION



EXPOSURE LIMITS/GUIDELINES:



CHEMICAL NAME



MAGNESIUM DINITRATE 10377-60-3



5-CHLORO-2-METHYL-4-
ISOTHIAZOLIN-3-ONE



2-METHYL-4-ISOTHIAZOLIN-
3-ONE



MAGNESIUM CHLORIDE



26172-55-4



2682-20-4



7786-30-3



CAS# ACGIH TLV OSHA PEL OTHER



EXPOSURE LIMITS IN AIR



NE NE NA



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
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FLASHPOINT:          Not applicable
AUTOIGNITION TEMPERATURE:     Not established



Not establishedFLAMMABLE LIMITS (in air by volume, %):



SECTION 9 - PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES



APPEARANCE and COLOR: Clear/yellow green liquid



BOILING POINT:          ca.100°C (212°F)



VAPOR DENSITY (Air=1):    Not established



pH:          2.0 - 5.0                        SOLUBILITY IN WATER:                                  Completely soluble



RELATIVE DENSITY@20°C (water=1):    .95 - 1.0



EVAPORATION RATE (n-BuAc=1          < 1



ODOR :          Pungent
VAPOR PRESSURE, mm Hg @ 20°C:    Not established



SECTION 10 - STABILITY AND REACTIVITY



SECTION 11 - TOXICOLOGICAL INFORMATION



MELTING/FREEZING POINT:          -3.00°C (26.60°F)



P264: Wash thoroughly after handling. P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye 
protection/face protection. Use chemically-resistant gloves when handling this product. Use 
body protection appropriate for task (e.g., lab coat, overalls, gloves). P272: Contaminated 
work clothing should not be allowed out of the workplace.



Safety glasses or safety goggles. If splashing is anticipated, a face shield is recommended. 
P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection. P264: Wash 
all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling.zd



Stable under normal condition of use and storage.



Thermal decomposition may yield the following: Hydrogen chloride, oxides of sulfur and 
nitrogen. 



None known. 



Oxidizing agents, reducing agents, amines, mercaptans.
See incompatible materials.



P260: Do not breathe dust/fume/gas/mist/vapours/spray. Use only outdoors or in a well-
ventilated area. Maintain airborne contaminant concentrations below guidelines listed above, 
if applicable. Air-purifying respirators with dust/mist/fume filters are recommended if 
operations may produce mists or sprays from this product.



VISCOSITY: Dynamic - 3.000 mPa.s at 25°C (77°F)



PARTITION COEFFICIENT(n-octanol/water): Not established



DECOMPOSITION TEMPERATURE:     Not established



Product is not reactive under standard ambient temperature and pressure. 



Do not eat, drink or smoke when using this product. 



VOLATILE ORGANIC COMPOUNDS (%):     None



ODOR THRESHOLD:          Not established



FLAMMABILITY (SOLID/GAS          Not applicable



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
ECOTOXICITY: No data available for this product.
PERSISTANCE AND DEGRADABILITY: Material is considered biodegradeable.
BIOLOGICAL ACCUMULATION POTENTIAL: No data available for this product.
MOBILITY IN SOIL: No data available for this product.
OTHER ADVERSE EFFECTS (i.e., hazardous to the ozone layer): No data available for this product.



Environmental Hazards: 
This pesticide is toxic to aquatic plants, fish and aquatic invertebrates. Do not discharge effluent containing this product into lakes, 
streams, ponds, estuaries, oceans, or other waters unless in accordance with the requirements of a National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit and the permitting authority has been notified in writing prior to discharge. Do not discharge 
effluent containing this product to sewer systems without previously notifying the local sewage treatment plant authority. For 
guidance contact your State Water Board or Regional Office of the EPA. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or 
disposal of waste. Apply this pesticide only as specified on the label.



BIOLOGICAL EXPOSURE INDICES: Currently, Biological Exposure Indices (BEIs) have not been determined for the components
                                                             of this product.



PRODUCT REQUIRES CORROSIVE LABEL.



DOT: UN 3265, Corrosive liquid, acidic, organic, n.o.s. (5-Chloro-2-methyl-4-
isothiazolin-3-one) 8, PG II
Emergency Response Guidebook, Guide No.: 153
Passenger Aircraft Qty: 1L
Cargo Airfcraft Qty: 30L



IMDG/IMO: UN 3265, Corrosive liquid, acidic, organic, n.o.s. (5-Chloro-2-methyl-4-
isothiazolin-3-one) 8, PG II



IATA/ICAO: UN 3265, Corrosive liquid, acidic, organic, n.o.s. (5-Chloro-2-methyl-4-
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



MAGNESIUM DINITRATE



5-CHLORO-2-METHYL-4-
ISOTHIAZOLIN-3-ONE



2-METHYL-4-ISOTHIAZOLIN-3-ONE



MAGNESIUM CHLORIDE



SARA 302 (40 CFR 355, Appendix A) - NO
SARA 304 (40 CFR Table 302.4) - NO
SARA 313 (40 CFR 372.65) - YES



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
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Formula 315 is EPA-registered; with EPA Reg. No. 8540-23. Refer to the approved label for details.



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
U.S. CERCLA REPORTABLE QUANTITY (RQ):  Not listed.
TSCA INVENTORY STATUS:  The components of this product are listed on the TSCA Inventory, or are exempt.
SARA TITLE III Section 311/312 Hazard Category: Acute:  YES;   Chronic: NO;   Fire: NO;   Reactive: NO;   Sudden Release of 
Pressure: NO



FIFRA Information
This chemical is a pesticide product registered by the Environmental Protection Agency and is subject to certain labeling 
requirements under federal pesticide law. These requirements differ from the classification criteria and hazard information 
required for safety data sheets, and for workplace labels of non-pesticide chemicals. Following is the hazard information as 
required on the pesticide label:



DANGER.CORROSIVE. Causes irreversible eye damage and skin burns. May cause allergic skin reaction. Harmful if swallowed 
or absorbed through the skin. Harmful if inhaled. 



Do not get in eyes, on skin, or on clothing. Prolonged or frequently repeated skin contact may cause allergic reaction in some 
individuals. Remove contaminated clothing and wash clothing before reuse. Mixers, loaders and others exposed to this product 
must wear: long-sleeved shirt and long pants; chemical resistant gloves such as nitrile or butyl rubber; shoes plus socks; goggles 
and face shield; and chemical resistant apron. Discard clothing or other absorbent materials that have been drenched or heavily 
contaminated with this product's concentrate. Do not reuse them. Follow manufacturer's instructions for cleaning/maintaining 
PPE. If no such instructions for washables exists, use detergent and hot water. Keep and wash PPE separately from other 
laundry. Users should wash hands before eating, drinking, chewing gum, using tobacco or using the toilet. Users should remove
clothing immediately if pesticide gets inside. Then wash thoroughly and put on clean clothing. Users should remove PPE 
immediately after handling this product. Wash the outside of gloves before removing. As soon as possible, wash thoroughly. 



California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act (Proposition 65): No component of this product is on the 
Proposition 65 list.



International Regulations
CANADIAN REGULATIONS:
CANADIAN DSL/NDSL INVENTORY STATUS:  The components of this product are on the DSL  Inventories or are exempt from 
listing.
CANADIAN WHMIS CLASSIFICATION: Not classified.



              DATE OF REVISION: 12/11/2018
PREPARED BY:   GARRATT CALLAHAN



                Supercedes:  4/18/2018



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



FORMULA 3110
WATER DISINFECTION



N/A
CHLORINE DIOXIDE (NOT HYDRATE), FORBIDDEN



SD3110
11/5/2018



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



SIGNAL WORD: Danger



HAZARD STATEMENT:
H301: Toxic if swallowed.  3
H315: Causes skin irritation.  2
H318: Causes serious eye damage.  1
H330: Fatal if inhaled.  1
H371: May cause damage to organs.  2
H373: May cause damage to organs through prolong or repeat exposure.  2



PRECAUTIONARY STATEMENTS: (PREVENTION)
P101: If medical advice is needed, have product container or label at hand.
P102: Keep out of reach of children.
P103: Read label before use.
P260: Do not breathe dust/fume/mist/vapours/spray.
P264: Wash all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling. 
P270: Do not eat, drink or smoke when using this product. 
P271: Use only outdoors or in well-ventilated area.
P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection.
P284: In case of inadequate ventilation wear respiratory protection.



Hazard Scale
0=Minimal 
1=Slight 
2=Moderate  
3=Serious  
4=Severe  
*=Chronic hazard



HAZARDOUS MATERIAL IDENTIFICATION SYSTEM



2 0 INSTABILITY



FLAMMABILITY



0
HEALTH



OX



SPECIAL HAZARD



PHYSICAL HAZARD (YELLOW) 0



FLAMMABILITY HAZARD (RED) 0



2HEALTH HAZARD (BLUE)



NFPA RATING



PERSONAL PROTECTION
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Hazardous Ingredients



CHLORINE DIOXIDE 10049-04-4



CAS# WT %EC# ICSC#



4g/Liter233-162-8 0127



SECTION 3 -  COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS



Exposed individuals must be taken for medical attention if any adverse effect occurs. Take a copy of this SDS to the health 
professional with the individual.



Danger: Toxic if swallowed. Causes skin irritation. Causes serious eye damage. Fatal if inhaled. May cause damage to organs. 
May cause damage to organs through prolong or repeat exposure. P308+P311: IF exposed or concerned: Call a POISON 
CENTER/doctor. P314: Get medical advice/attention if you feel unwell.



Also refer to Section 11 for symptoms, effects, and likely routes of exposure for this product.



TARGET ORGANS: 
ACUTE: Irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.
CHRONIC: Irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.



SKIN EXPOSURE: P302+P352: IF ON SKIN: Wash with plenty of water. Remove/take off immediately all contaminated clothing. 
Rinse skin with water/shower. Minimum rinsing time is for 15 minutes. Remove exposed or contaminated clothing, taking care 
not to contaminate the eyes. P362+P364: Take off contaminated clothing and wash it before reuse. P332+P313: If skin irritation 
occurs: Get medical advice/attention.



EYE EXPOSURE: P305+P351+P338: IF IN EYES: Rinse continuously with water for several minutes. Remove contact lenses if 
present and easy to do – continue rinsing. Use sufficient force to open the eyelids. Have the exposed individual "roll" their eyes. 
Minimum rinsing time is for 15 minutes. P310: Immediately call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician



INHALATION: P304+P340: IF INHALED: Remove victim to fresh air and keep at rest in a position comfortable for breathing. 
P310: Immediately call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician



INGESTION: P301+P310: If SWALLOWED: Immediately call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician. P330: Rinse mouth. Do 
NOT induce vomiting. Routine use of this product is not expected to cause a situation which could lead to ingestion. Never 
induce vomiting or give diluents (milk or water) by mouth to someone who is unconscious, having convulsions, or unable to 
swallow.



MEDICAL CONDITIONS AGGRAVATED BY EXPOSURE: Skin and respiratory disorders, as well as conditions involving the 
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



Use water or foam as extingushing media. Do not use Carbon dioxide.



SPECIFIC HAZARDS ARISING FROM 
THE CHEMICAL:



Fire may cause dangerous smoke/gas: Chlorine dioxide.



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



WARNING: Any container expansion or rounding indicates pressure build-up. Use extreme caution. When opening, release 
pressure slowly through opening.



SPILL AND LEAK RESPONSE: Uncontrolled releases should be responded to by appropriately trained personnel using pre-
planned procedures. Proper protective equipment should be used, refer to Section 8 - exposure controls. P391: Collect spillage.



Small Spill: Mop up, or absorb with an inert dry material and place in an appropriate waste disposal container. 



Large Spill: Restrict access to the area. Provide adequate protective equipment and ventilation. Stop leak if without risk. Remove 
chemicals which can react with the spilled material. Prevent entry into surface waters, sewers, basements or confined areas, dike 
if needed. Ensure that exposure to product is not at a concentration exceeding regulatory limits. Decontaminate the area 
thoroughly. Decontaminate all response equipment with soapy water before returning to service. Place all spill residue in a 
suitable container and seal. 



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
generated by this product. Use in a well-ventilated location. Remove contaminated clothing immediately. Use only as directed. 
Refer to Section 8 for exposure controls. 



CONDITIONS FOR SAFE STORAGE: Containers of this product must be properly labeled. Storage areas of this product 
should be clearly identified, well-illuminated, clear of obstruction and accessible only to trained and authorized personnel. Store 
containers in a clean, cool, well ventilated, dry location, away from direct sunlight, away from incompatible materials at 
temperatures between 50ºF (10°C) - 100ºF (37°C). Keep container tightly closed when not in use. P405: Store locked up. Do 
not ingest. Do not breathe vapor mist. Wash hands after handling. Refer to Section 10 for incompatibilities. P403+P233: Store
in a well-ventilated place. Keep container tightly closed. Store in original sealed packaging. Protect against humidity. Avoid heat 
or op flames. Keep away from acids and combustible materials. Store away from incompatible materials. Acids, Reducing 
agents. Organic substances.



SECTION 8 - EXPOSURE CONTROLS - PERSONAL PROTECTION



EXPOSURE LIMITS/GUIDELINES:



CHEMICAL NAME



CHLORINE DIOXIDE 10049-04-4



CAS# ACGIH TLV OSHA PEL OTHER



EXPOSURE LIMITS IN AIR



0.3 ppm     0.1 ppm        
(0.3 mg/L)             TWA: 0.1 ppm



           REL      
    



ST 0.3 ppm
SDLH 5.0 ppm



TWA 



0.1 ppm



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



P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face/protection.



P260: Do not breathe dust/fume/gas/mist/vapours/spray. Maintain airborne contaminant 
concentrations below guidelines listed above, if applicable.  Air-purifying respirators with 
dust/mist/fume/spray filters are recommended if operations may produce dusts, mists or 
sprays from this product. P271: Use only outdoors or in a well ventilated area. P284: In case 
of inadequate ventilation wear respiratory protection.



STEL TWA                            NIOSH



NE = Not Established       



P264: Wash thoroughly after handling. P270: Do not eat, drink, or smoke when using this 
product.



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
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FLASHPOINT: Not established
   AUTOIGNITION TEMPERATURE:                    Not established



Not establishedFLAMMABLE LIMITS (in air by volume, %):



SECTION 9 - PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES



APPEARANCE and COLOR:        White to pale yellow
       liquid solution



BOILING POINT: Not established



   VAPOR DENSITY (Air=1): Not established



pH: 4 - 5    SOLUBILITY IN WATER:                                   Unlimited
   RELATIVE DENSITY@20°C (water=1):             1.15 g/Liter



EVAPORATION RATE (n-BuAc=1): Not established



ODOR : Similar to chlorine



   VAPOR PRESSURE, mm Hg @ 20°C:              Not established



SECTION 10 - STABILITY AND REACTIVITY



SECTION 11 - TOXICOLOGICAL INFORMATION



MELTING/FREEZING POINT: Not established



Stable under normal condition of use and storage.



None known.



Thermal critical point >180°C ( 356°F). Product is combustible. Product is oxidative.



Acids. Reducing agents. Organic substances.



Heat, flames and sparks. Incompatible Materials. Avoid heating reactions. Metal salts 
(Transformation). Reducing Agents(Transformation). Oxidizers (Gas formation). 
Combustibles (fire Danger)



   VISCOSITY:                                                       Not established



   PARTITION COEFFICIENT(



   DECOMPOSITION TEMPERATURE:                Not established



Not recative under normal conditions. Note: Product is fire enhancer (contact with other 
combustible goods might cause ignition) Product is oxidative.



   VOLATILE ORGANIC COMPOUNDS (%):  Not established



ODOR THRESHOLD: Not established



FLAMMABILITY (SOLID/GAS): Not established



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
                    RELATED SYMPTOMS: Eye contact: Causes serious eye damage.
                                                            Skin Contact: Corrosive. Causes skin irritation
                                                            Inhalation: Fatal if inhaled.
                                                            Ingestion: Toxic if swallowed. Corrosive injuries in mouth and esophagus.                                        
   DELAYED/IMMEDIATE/CHRONIC 
         EFFECTS FROM SHORT AND 
              LONG TERM EXPOSURES: Causes damage to organs. Causes damage to organs through prolonged or repeated exposure.
           NUMERICAL MEASURES OF 
                                          TOXICITY: Chemical Name: Liquid Chlorine dioxide 10049-04-04
                                                             Oral LD50 = 165 mg/kg (Rat)
                                                             Dermal LD50 = 107.2 mg/kg (Rabbit)
                                                             Inhalation LC50 = 230 mg/m³ (Rat) 4 h
   
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
www.garrattcallahan.com Page 4 of 6





jpangilinan


Typewritten Text





jpangilinan


Typewritten Text





jpangilinan


Typewritten Text


n-octanol/water):   Not established





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
ECOTOXICITY: Very toxic to aquatic life with long lasting effects.
Kills all known water-borne viruses, bacteria, fungi, algae, mod, spores, giardia, cryptosporidia.
No harmful Disinfection By-product (DBP's)
No TM's, HAA's, MX, bromides and bromines.
Chemical Name: Liquid Chlorine dioxide 10049-04-4
Fish: 100 - 500: 96 h Brachydanio rerio mg/L LC50 static 100: 96 h
Lepomis macronchirus mg/L LC50 static 100:96 h Oncorhynchus mykiss mg/L
LC50 static.
Crustacea: 0.026:48 h Daphnia magna mg/L EC50 0.25 - 0.33:48 h Daphnia 
magna mg/L EC50 Flow thourgh 0.012 -0.018: 48 h Daphnia magna mg/L 
EC50 static.
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
ENVIROMENTAL HAZARDS: This product is toxic to fish, aquatic, invertebrates, oysters, and shrimp. Do not discharge effluent 
containing this product into lakes, streams, ponds, estuaries, oceans, or other waters unless in accordance with the requirements of 
the Nation Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit and the permitting authority has been notified in writing prior to 
discharge. Do not discharge effluent containing this products to sewer systems without previously notifying the local sewage 
treatment plant authority. For guidance contact your State Water Board or Regional Office of the EPA.



BIOLOGICAL EXPOSURE INDICES: Currently, Biological Exposure Indices (BEIs) have not been determined 
                                                             for the components of this product.                                                                                              



DOT: Chlorine dioxide (not hydrate), Forbidden



IMDG/IMO: Chlorine dioxide (not hydrate), Forbidden, PG 1



IATA/ICAO: Chlorine dioxide, Forbidden



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



DISPOSAL: Thoroughly drain/empty containers and offer for recycling. Refer to Section 8 for exposure controls - personal 
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



CHLORINE DIOXIDE SARA 302 (40 CFR 355, Appendix A) - NO
SARA 304 (40 CFR Table 302.4) - NO
SARA 313 (40 CFR 372.65) - YES
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Formula 3110 is registered with the NSF to the Nationally Reognized Health Effects Standard (ANSI 60) for chemicals which are 
used to treat drinking water.



SECTION 16 - OTHER INFORMATION



U.S. Regulations
U.S. SARA THRESHOLD PLANNING QUANTITY: There are no specific Threshold Planning Quantities for the components of 
this product.  
The default Federal SDS submission and inventory requirement filing threshold of 10,000 lbs (4,540 kg) therefore applies, per 40 
CFR 370.20.
U.S. CERCLA REPORTABLE QUANTITY (RQ): None.
U.S. TSCA INVENTORY STATUS:  The components of this product are listed on the TSCA Inventory, or are exempt.
SARA Title 311/312, Hazard Category:  Acute Health:  YES;   Chronic: YES;   Fire: NO;   Reactive: NO;   Sudden Release of 
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



DANGER: HAZARDS TO HUMANS AND DOMESTIC ANIMALS:
Dry ingredients: Corrosive. Causes irreversible eye damage and causes skin burns. Do not get in eyes or on clothing. Wear 
chemical resistant gloves. May be fatal if swallowed, Wear protective eyewear (goggles, face shield, or safety glasses) when 
handling dry ingredients. Wear coveralls worn over long sleeved shirt and long pants. Chemical resistant footwear and socks 
must be worn. Wash thoroughly with soap and water after handling and before eating, drinking, chewing gum, using tobacco or 
using the toilet. Remove contaminated clothing and wash before reuse. Activated solution: May be fatal if swallowed. Do not get 
in the eyes or on clothing. Avoid contact with skin. Avoid breathing vapors. Wash thoroughly with soap and water after handling 
and before eating, drinking, chewing gum, using tobacco or using the toilet. People must vacate the premise during fogging 
treatment: a one-hour restricted entry interval (REI) is required.



California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act (Proposition 65): No component of this product is on the 
Proposition 65 list.



International Regulations
CANADIAN REGULATIONS: 
CANADIAN DSL/NDSL INVENTORY STATUS:  The components of this product are on the DSL or NDSL Inventories or are 
exempt from listing. CANADIAN WHMIS CLASSIFICATION: Product containes components listed by WHMIS. Chlorine Dioxide 
CAS# 10049-04-4: D1A,E.



              DATE OF REVISION: 11/5/2018
PREPARED BY:   GARRATT CALLAHAN



                  Supercedes: 3/5/2018
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Although reasonable care has been taken in the preparation of this document, we extend no warranties and make no representations as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained herein, and assume no responsibility regarding the suitability of this information for the user's intended purpose or for the consequences of its use. Each individual should make a determination as to the suitability of the information for their particular purpose.
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Formula 3110 is EPA-registered; with EPA Reg. No. 84912-2-8540. Refer to the approved label for details.
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SAFETY DATA SHEET



SECTION 1 - PRODUCT IDENTIFICATION



SECTION 2 - HAZARDS IDENTIFICATION



FORMULA 314-T
BIOCIDE



UN3085
UN3085, OXIDIZING SOLID, CORROSIVE, N.O.S. (CONTAINS 
BROMO-CHLORO-DIMETHYLHYDANTOIN), 5.1(8), PG III, 
MARINE POLLUTANT



SD3314
4/30/2018



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
H272: May intensify fire; oxidizer.  3
H302: Harmful if swallowed.  4
H314: Causes severe skin burns and eye damage. 1A
H317: May cause an allergic reaction. 
H400: Very toxic to aquatic life.  1 



PRECAUTIONARY STATEMENTS: (PREVENTION)
P101: If medical advice is needed, have product container or label at hand.
P102: Keep out of reach of children.
P103: Read label before use.
P210: Keep away from heat/sparks/open flames/hot surfaces - No smoking.
P220: Keep/Store away from clothing/combustible materials.
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
P273: Avoid release to the environment. 
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



3 1 INSTABILITY



FLAMMABILITY



1
HEALTH



OX



SPECIAL HAZARD



PHYSICAL HAZARD (YELLOW) 1



FLAMMABILITY HAZARD (RED) 1



3HEALTH HAZARD (BLUE)



NFPA RATING



PERSONAL PROTECTION
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Hazardous Ingredients



I-BROMO-3-CHLORO-5,5-DIMETHYL-
HYDANTOIN



16079-88-2



CAS# WT %EC# ICSC#



96240-230-0 NE



SECTION 3 -  COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS



Exposed individuals must be taken for medical attention if any adverse effect occurs. Take a copy of this SDS to the health 
professional with the individual. 



DANGER: May intensify fire; oxidizer. Harmful if swallowed. Causes severe skin burns and eye damage. May cause an allergic 
reaction. Very toxic to aquatic life. Also refer to Section 11 for symptoms, effects, and likely routes of exposure for this product.



TARGET ORGANS: 
ACUTE: irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.
CHRONIC: irritation of skin, eyes, respiratory and gastrointestinal systems.



SKIN EXPOSURE: P303+P361+P353: IF ON SKIN (or hair): Remove/take off immediately all contaminated clothing. P302
+P352: IF ON SKIN: Wash with soap and water. Minimum flushing time is for 15 minutes. Remove exposed or contaminated 
clothing, taking care not to contaminate the eyes. P362+P364: Take off contaminated clothing and wash before reuse. P332
+P313: If skin irritation occurs: Get medical advice/attention.



EYE EXPOSURE: P305+P351+P338: IF IN EYES: Rinse continuously with water for several minutes. Remove contact lenses if 
present and easy to do – continue rinsing. Use sufficient force to open the eyelids. Have the exposed individual "roll" their eyes. 
Minimum flushing time is for 15 minutes. P310: Immediately call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician.



INHALATION: P304+P340: IF INHALED: Remove victim to fresh air and keep at rest in a position comfortable for breathing. 
P310: Immediately call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physican. 



INGESTION: P301+P330+P331: IF SWALLOWED: Rinse mouth. Do NOT induce vomiting. Never induce vomiting or give 
diluents (milk or water) by mouth to someone who is unconscious, having convulsions, or unable to swallow. P310: Immediately 
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



P370+P378: In case of fire: Use water spray, fog or mist. Alcohol-resistant foam. 
DO NOT use CO2 or dry chemicals,



SPECIFIC HAZARDS ARISING FROM 
THE CHEMICAL:



Oxidizing material. Toxic gases/vapours/fumes of: Bromine. Chlorine. Oxides of the 
following substances: Carbon. Nitrogen. Thermal decomposition or combustion 
products may include the following substances: Toxic gases or vapours.



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
release run off from fire control methods to sewer or waterways. Move containers 
from fire area if it can be done without risk. Control run-off water by containing and 
keeping it out of sewers and watercourses.



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
planned procedures. Proper protective equipment should be used, refer to Section 8 - exposure controls. P273: Avoid release to 
the environment. 



Small Spill: Mop up, or absorb with an inert dry material and place in an appropriate waste disposal container. P391: Collect 
spillage.



Large Spill: Restrict access to the area. Provide adequate protective equipment and ventilation. Stop leak if without risk. 
Remove chemicals which can react with the spilled material. Add dry inert material to contain and absorb spilled material. Prevent 
entry into surface waters, sewers, basements or confined areas, dike if needed. Avoid generation of dust. Avoid contact with 
water. Ensure that exposure to product is not at a concentration exceeding regulatory limits. Decontaminate the area thoroughly. 
Decontaminate all response equipment with soapy water before returning to service. Place all spill residue in a suitable container 
and seal. P391: Collect spillage.



SECTION 6 - ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES



SECTION 7 - HANDLING AND STORAGE



PRECAUTIONS FOR SAFE HANDLING:  Keep out of reach of children. All employees who handle this material should be 
trained to handle it safely. Open containers slowly on a stable surface. As with all chemicals, avoid getting this product ON
YOU or IN YOU. Avoid direct or prolonged contact with skin or eyes. Do not ingest. Wash thoroughly after handling this 
product. Do not eat, drink, smoke, or apply cosmetics while handling this product. Avoid breathing vapors, dusts or mists 
generated by this product. Use in a well-ventilated location. Remove contaminated clothing immediately. Use only as directed. 
Refer to Section 8 for exposure controls. P210: Keep away from heat/sparks/open flames/hot surfaces - No smoking. P220: 
Keep/Store away from clothing/combustible materials. P273: Avoid release to the environment. 



CONDITIONS FOR SAFE STORAGE: Containers of this product must be properly labeled. Storage areas of this product 
should be clearly identified, well-illuminated, clear of obstruction and accessible only to trained and authorized personnel. Store 
containers in a clean, cool, well ventilated, dry location, away from direct sunlight, away from incompatible materials at 
temperatures between 50ºF (10°C) - 100ºF (37°C). Keep container tightly closed when not in use. Avoid spilling, skin and eye 
contact. Avoid contact with acids, moisture or combustible materials. Keep away from heat, sparks and open flames. P405: 
Store locked up. Do not ingest. Do not breathe vapor mist. Wash hands after handling. Refer to Section 10 for incompatibilities. 



SECTION 8 - EXPOSURE CONTROLS - PERSONAL PROTECTION



EXPOSURE LIMITS/GUIDELINES:



CHEMICAL NAME



I-BROMO-3-CHLORO-5,5-
DIMETHYL-HYDANTOIN



16079-88-2



CAS# ACGIH TLV OSHA PEL OTHER



EXPOSURE LIMITS IN AIR



NE NE N/A



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
AUTOIGNITION TEMPERATURE: Not established



Not establishedFLAMMABLE LIMITS (in air by volume, %):



SECTION 9 - PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES



APPEARANCE and COLOR: White to off-white tablet



BOILING POINT: Not applicable



VAPOR DENSITY (Air=1): Not applicable



pH                                                                  3.5 @ 0.15%                    
(diluted soloution) 



SOLUBILITY IN WATER: 0.15 @°C slightly 
soluble in water



RELATIVE DENSITY@20°C (water=1): Not aplicable



EVAPORATION RATE (n-BuAc=1): Not applicable



ODOR : Slight Halogen
VAPOR PRESSURE                                         0.0038 Pa @ 25°C



SECTION 10 - STABILITY AND REACTIVITY



SECTION 11 - TOXICOLOGICAL INFORMATION



MELTING/FREEZING POINT: 156-162°C



P264: Wash all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling. P272: Contaminated work 
clothing should not be allowed out of the workplace. P280: Wear protective gloves/protective 
clothing/eye protection/face protection. Use chemically-resistant gloves and skin protection, 
when handling this product. Use body protection appropriate for task (e.g., lab coat, overalls).



P264: Wash all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling. P280: Wear protective 
gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection. Wear chemical safety goggles or 
safety glasses with side shields. A face shield may also be necessary for splash protection.



                     CARCINOGENICITY: None of the components of this product are listed by the NTP, IARC, or regulated by 
                                                        OSHA as carcinogens.



Stable at normal ambient temperatures. Avoid the following conditions: Moisture.



Toxic gases/vapors/fumes of: Hydrogen bromide (HBr). Bromine. Hyrdogen chloride (HCI). 
Chlorine. Oxides of the following substances: Carbon. Nitrogen.



Will not polymerize.



Strong acids. Strong alkalis. Strong reducing agents.



Generates toxic gas in contact with acid. Avoid heat, flames and other sources of ignition. 
Avoid excessive heat for prolonged periods of time.



P260: Do not breathe dust/fume/gas/mist/vapours/spray. Use only outdoors or in a well-
ventilated area. Maintain airborne contaminant concentrations below guidelines listed above, 
if applicable. Air-purifying respirators with dust/mist/fume/spray filters are recommended if 
operations may produce dusts, mists or sprays from this product with concentrations at or 
above levels posted above.



VISCOSITY: Not applicable



PARTITION COEFFICIENT(n-octanol/water):  0.35



DECOMPOSITION TEMPERATURE: Not established



Material has oxidizing properties.



P264: Wash all exposed skin/hair thoroughly after handling. P270: Do not eat, drink or smoke 
when using this product.



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



        TOXICOLOGICAL EFFECTS: There is no evidence that the product can cause cancer.
LIKELY ROUTES OF EXPOSURE: Skin and/or eye contact. Ingestion. Inhalation.
                 RELATED SYMPTOMS: Skin and/or eye contact. Ingestion. Inhalation
DELAYED/IMMEDIATE/CHRONIC 



       EFFECTS FROM SHORT AND
           LONG TERM EXPOSURES: Inhalation: May cause respiratory system irritation.
                                                          Ingestion: Harmful if swallowed. 
                                                          Skin contact: Causes burns. May cause sensitisation by skin contact. 
                                                          Eye contact: Causes burns.
                                                          Acute and chronic health hazards: This product is corrosive. 
        NUMERICAL MEASURES OF
                                       TOXICITY: Oral: LD50: rats, 578 mg/kg
                                                          Dermal: LD50: rabbits, 2000mg/kg
                                                          Ames test: Negative
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
ECOTOXICITY: This product contains a substance chich is very toxic to aquatic organisms.
Acute toxicity - fish: 
LC50, 96 hours: 0.87 mg/l, Onchorhynchus mykiss (Rainbow trout)
LC50, 96 hours: 0.87 mg/l, Fish



Acute toxicity - aquatic:
EC50, 48 hours: 0.46 mg/l, Daphnia magna
EC50, 48 hours, 0.46 mg/l, Daphnia magna 



Acute toxicity:
LC50, 96 hours, 640 American oyster mg/l



PERSISTENCE AND DEGRADABILITY: Halogens will dissociate in water leaving DMH. DMH is really biodegradable in a CO2 
Evolution study and passes the 10-day window criteria. DMH has also been shown to be rapidly degraded in a water/sediment 
system. 
BIOLOGICAL ACCUMULATION POTENTIAL: Material is expected to present a low bioaccumulation potential.
MOBILITY IN SOIL: No data available for this product.
OTHER ADVERSE EFFECTS (i.e., hazardous to the ozone layer): The product contains a substance which is very toxic to 
aquatic organisms. 



Environmental Hazards: 
This pesticide is toxic to fish and aquatic organisms. Do not discharge effluent containing this product into lakes, streams, ponds, 
estuaries, oceans or other waters unless in accordance with the requirements of a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit and the permitting authority has been notified in writing prior to discharge. Do not discharge effluent containing this 
product into sewer systems without previously notifying the local sewage treatment plant authority. For guidance, contact your State 
Water Board or Regional Office of the EPA.



BIOLOGICAL EXPOSURE INDICES: Currently, Biological Exposure Indices (BEIs) have not been determined for the components
                                                             of this product.



PRODUCT REQUIRES OXIDIZER AND CORROSIVE LABEL AND MARINE POLLUTANT 
MARKING.



DOT: UN3085, OXIDIZING SOLID, CORROSIVE, N.O.S.  (CONTAINS BROMO-
CHLORO-DIMETHYLHYDANTOIN), 5.1(8), PG III, MARINE POLLUTANT   
Emergency Response Guidebook, Guide No.: 140 Passenger Aircraft Qty: 25 
kg Cargo Aircraft Qty: 100 kg



IMDG/IMO: UN3085, OXIDIZING SOLID, CORROSIVE, N.O.S.  (CONTAINS BROMO-
CHLORO-DIMETHYLHYDANTOIN),  5.1(8), PG III, MARINE POLLUTANT



IATA/ICAO: UN3085, OXIDIZING SOLID, CORROSIVE, N.O.S.  (CONTAINS BROMO-
CHLORO-DIMETHYLHYDANTOIN),  5.1(8), PG III, MARINE POLLUTANT



ENVIRONMENTAL HAZARDS 
(i.e., MARINE POLLUTANT): Yes



TRANSPORT IN BULK (according to 
annex II marpol 73/78 and the IBC code): Not applicable



SPECIAL PRECAUTIONS FOR USER: None known



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



Formula 314-T is EPA-registered; with EPA Reg. No. 83451-4-8540. Refer to the approved label for details.  Formula 314-T is 
registered with the NSF to the NSF International Registration Guidelines for Proprietary Substances and Nonfood Compounds for 
category codes G5, G7; with NSF Reg. No. 113139.



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



SARA 302 (40CFR 355, APPENDIX A) - NO 
SARA 304 (40CFR TABLE 302.4) - NO 
SARA 313  (40CFR 372.65) - NO



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
U.S. CERCLA REPORTABLE QUANTITY (RQ): Not listed.
U.S. TSCA INVENTORY STATUS: The components of this product are listed on the TSCA Inventory, or are exempt.
SARA TITLE 311/312 HAZARD CATEGORY: ACUTE: YES   CHRONIC: NO   FIRE: YES   REACTIVITY: YES   PRESSURE: 
NO



California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act (Proposition 65):   No component of this product is on the 
Proposition 65 list.



FIFRA Information:
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



DANGER. CORROSIVE. Causes irreversible eye damage and skin burns. Harmful if swallowed. Irritating to nose and throat. Do 
not get in eyes, on skin, or on clothing. Wear protective eyewear (goggles, face shield, or safety glasses). Wear protective 
clothing and rubber gloves when handling this product. Avoid breathing dust and fumes. Wash thoroughly with soap and water 
after handling. Remove contaminated clothing and wash clothing before reuse.



International Regulations
CANADIAN REGULATIONS: CANADIAN DSL/NDSL INVENTORY STATUS: The components of this product are on the DSL or 
NDSL  Inventories or are exempt from listing. CANADIAN WHMIS CLASSIFICATION:  Not listed.



                DATE OF REVISION: 4/30/2018
PREPARED BY: GARRATT CALLAHAN



3/29/2016Supercedes:



Although reasonable care has been taken in the preparation of this document, we extend no warranties and make no representations as to the 
accuracy or completeness of the information contained herein, and assume no responsibility regarding the suitability of this information for the user's 
intended purpose or for the consequences of its use. Each individual should make a determination as to the suitability of the information for their 
particular purpose.
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that they would like us to look into and determine if the nature of the process wastewater which is
discharged to the sanitary sewer should require and Industrial User Permit.
 
The Industrial User Permit is a document that we issue to Industries that allows for the discharge of
process wastewaters to the sanitary sewer.  It lays out the sanitation code requirements for
discharging non-domestic wastewaters and may contain monitoring or treatment requirements
depending on the characteristics of the wastewater.  The permits are required by the Sanitation
Code Ordinance, and for some processes Federal Regulations.  
 
Robert Tillotson
Environmental Compliance Inspector
(707) 547-1078


 
 
 


From: Matt Johnson <Matt.Johnson@smcltd.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 2:37 PM
To: Robert Tillotson <Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov>
Cc: TJ Shadid <TJ.Shadid@smcltd.com>
Subject: RE: Wastewater Discharge Survey - SMC Ltd.
 
HI Robert,
I will have to look into the amounts of water that we have discharging.
And I will also contact my water treatment technician about the chemicals that are added.
We have not made any changes to any part of the system since we occupied this building. Did I fill
out the form incorrectly triggering questions?
 
Regards,
Matt Johnson
Maintenance
 


3250 Brickway Blvd.
Santa Rosa, CA  95403
707.303.3046
www.smcltd.com
 


From: Robert Tillotson <Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov> 
Sent: Monday, April 20, 2020 1:19 PM



mailto:Matt.Johnson@smcltd.com

mailto:Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov

mailto:TJ.Shadid@smcltd.com

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/X3V1CXDqBWiX0jz5h6D91I/

mailto:Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov





To: Matt Johnson <Matt.Johnson@smcltd.com>
Cc: TJ Shadid <TJ.Shadid@smcltd.com>; James Hiller <James.Hiller@scwa.ca.gov>; David Royall
<David.Royall@scwa.ca.gov>
Subject: Wastewater Discharge Survey - SMC Ltd.
 
Hi Matt,
 
We just received the Wastewater Discharge Survey that SMC Ltd completed for Permit Sonoma. To
expedite things on our end I will proceed with our plan check and should have that back over to the
permitting office later today.  However, I do have some questions about the process wastewater
that is discharged to the sanitary sewer.  In the Survey you’ve indicated that approximately 4,750
gallons per day is discharged to the sewer, can you elaborate on this for me? How much of this is
sanitary waste (restrooms, handwashing, etc) and how much is process wastewater? Of the process
wastewater, where is it generated? What does it come into contact with? Are there and chemicals
added?
 
Wastewater that is generated by Plastics forming and molding processes are federally regulated and
may require that SMC obtain an Industrial User permit to discharge that waste to the sanitary sewer
system.
 
Thanks,
 
Robert Tillotson
Environmental Compliance Inspector
(707) 547-1078
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RE: BLD19-8144; 059-210-053

		From

		Kathy Badger

		To

		Keith Hanna; Robert Tillotson

		Cc

		Debby Turner; Leann Clark

		Recipients

		Keith.Hanna@sonoma-county.org; Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov; Debby.Turner@sonoma-county.org; Leann.Clark@sonoma-county.org





EXTERNAL
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Keith,




This is what we have listed.






 




Kathy




 








From: Keith Hanna <Keith.Hanna@sonoma-county.org> 


Sent: Thursday, May 14, 2020 3:22 PM


To: Kathy Badger <Kathy.Badger@scwa.ca.gov>; Robert Tillotson <Robert.Tillotson@scwa.ca.gov>


Cc: Debby Turner <Debby.Turner@sonoma-county.org>; Leann Clark <Leann.Clark@sonoma-county.org>


Subject: RE: BLD19-8144; 059-210-053










 




Hi Kathy,




I am working on ESD calculations for the below project.




 




The master list shows:










			

059-210-053






			

1






			

120-015






			

311






			

7.14






			



			

            6,990.06 








			

BRICKWAY PARTNERS LLC






			

WHSE; OFFICE; 26,250 SF;                 97-0207






			

3250






			



			

BRICKWAY


















 




SEW17-0207 description is:  






SANTA ROSA STEEL CO. CONNECTION AND INSPECTION




800 gpd (process) + 1,200 gpd (dom.)/280g/ESD =  

7.14 ESDs.  

Current ACRs: 18.39 (partial paid)




 




The permit references 18.39 ACR, but not seeing in ML. Can you confirm if they have ACR’s?




 




Hi Robert,




Looks like you worked on the WWDS plan check. The comment was provided below:




 




WWDS in 20 April 2020, comment was “Applicant may need to aquire an Industrial User Permit for discharge of process wastewater to sanitary sewer. Sonoma Water will reach out to

 applicant directly.”




 




They are working on getting building permit final, and not sure if Sonoma Water wants an Industrial User Permit.




 




Can you also provide the completed WWSD? Not seeing it in our files (sorry to ask if we had it).






 




Thanks,




Keith








From: Leann Clark <Leann.Clark@sonoma-county.org>




Sent: Thursday, May 14, 2020 9:20 AM


To: Keith Hanna <Keith.Hanna@sonoma-county.org>


Cc: Debby Turner <Debby.Turner@sonoma-county.org>


Subject: FW: BLD19-8144










 




Susan O. has heard from them again today. Any news?




 






~Leann







 








From: Leann Clark On Behalf Of PRMD-2268-Engineer


Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2020 11:38 AM


To: Keith Hanna <Keith.Hanna@sonoma-county.org>; Debby Turner <Debby.Turner@sonoma-county.org>


Subject: FW: BLD19-8144










 




Can one of you tell me, or email the customer, what will need to occur to have this sewer hold released? The permit is not yet issued, but per Susan O., they are going to want all inspections done as soon as

 it’s issued. It’s for a clean room, so I believe it might have some sort of priority during the pandemic?




[image: cid:image006.png@01D6291A.F34D5B70]
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~Leann







 








From: Susan Obuchowski <Susan.Obuchowski@sonoma-county.org>




Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2020 10:53 AM


To: PRMD-2191-FireCube <PRMD-2191-FireCube@sonoma-county.org>; PRMD-2268-Engineer <PRMD-2268-Engineer@sonoma-county.org>


Subject: BLD19-8144










 




Hello,




 




There are two holds on this permit.




Fire




Sewer




 




Contact:  Mark DeMeo  Phone: 707 478 1790




Email:  mark@demeoconstruction.com




 




Susan Obuchowski




Office Assistant ll




www.PermitSonoma.org






County of Sonoma






Administration Division

|

Customer Service 




2550 Ventura Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95403




Office Phone: (707) 565-1900
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OFFICE HOURS: Permit Sonoma’s public lobby is open Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, except Wednesdays, open from

 10:30 AM to 4:00 PM.
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

059-210-053 1 120-015 311 7.14            
6,990.06

BRICKWAY PARTNERS LLC WHSE; OFFICE; 26,250 SF;                 97-0207 3250 BRICKWAY

 
SEW17-0207 description is: 

SANTA ROSA STEEL CO. CONNECTION AND INSPECTION
800 gpd (process) + 1,200 gpd (dom.)/280g/ESD =   7.14 ESDs.  Current ACRs: 18.39 (partial paid)

 
The permit references 18.39 ACR, but not seeing in ML. Can you confirm if they have ACR’s?
 
Hi Robert,
Looks like you worked on the WWDS plan check. The comment was provided below:
 

WWDS in 20 April 2020, comment was “Applicant may need to aquire an Industrial User Permit for discharge of process wastewater to sanitary sewer. Sonoma Water will reach out to applicant directly.”
 
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
 
Can one of you tell me, or email the customer, what will need to occur to have this sewer hold released? The permit is not yet issued, but per Susan O., they are going to want all inspections done as soon as it’s issued. It’s for a clean room,
so I believe it might have some sort of priority during the pandemic?
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
Administration Division | Customer Service
2550 Ventura Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95403
Office Phone: (707) 565-1900

 
OFFICE HOURS: Permit Sonoma’s public lobby is open Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, except Wednesdays, open from 10:30 AM to 4:00 PM.
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